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Elizabeth D. Baker, Land Use Coordinator
Walsh, Colucci, Lubeley, Emrich & Terpak, PC
2200 Clarendon Boulevard, 13th Floor
Arlington, Virginia 22201-3359

RE: Rezoning Application Number RZ 2003-PR-008
(Concurrent with PCA 75-7-004-2)

Dear Ms. Baker:

Enclosed you will find a copy of an Ordinance adopted by the Board of Supervisors at a
regular meeting held on March 15 , 2004 , granting Rezoning Application Number RZ 2003-PR-
008 in the name of Lincoln Property Company, Southwest, Inc., to rezone certain property in
the Providence District from the 1-3 District and Highway Corridor Overlay District to the
PDH-30 District and Highway Corridor Overlay District to permit residential development at a
density of 29.9 dwelling units per acre (du/ac) including bonus density for the provision of
Affordable Dwelling Units (ADUs), located on the east side of Gallows Road and on the north
and south sides of Science Application Court, Tax Map 39-2 ((1)) 13 pt., subject to the
proffers dated March 14, 2004, consisting of approximately 19.04 acres.

The Board also:

• Modified the transitional screening requirement along the southeastern
and southern boundaries where the multi-family units abuts the Courts of
Tysons and Tysons Executive Village communities in favor of that shown
on the Conceptual Development Plan/Final Development Plan (CDP/FDP).

• Waived the barrier requirement along the southeastern and southern
boundaries where the multi-family housing abuts the Courts of Tysons and
Tysons Executive Village communities in favor of that shown on the
CDP/FDP.
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• Modified the non-core streetscape design along Gallows Road for the
Tysons Urban Center in favor of that shown on the CDP/FDP.

• Waived the 200 square foot privacy yard requirement for single family
attached homes.

• Modified the loading space requirement for multi-family dwellings in favor
of one loading space provided for each of the buildings (two total spaces).

• Waived the 600-foot maximum private street length requirement.

Sincerely,

Nancy Ve.
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

NV/ns

cc: Chairman Gerald E . Connolly
Supervisor Linda Q. Smyth, Providence District
Janet Coldsmith, Director, Real Estate Div., Dept. of Tax Administration
Michael R. Congleton, Deputy Zoning Enforcement Branch
Barbara A. Byron, Director, Zoning Evaluation Div., DPZ
Thomas Conry, Dept . Mgr. -- GIS - Mapping/Overlay
Angela K . Rodeheaver, Section Chief, Trnsprt'n. Planning Div.,
Charles Strunk, Project Planning Section , Dept . of Transportation
Michelle Brickner, Deputy Director, DPWES
Kenny King, Proffer Administrator, Plans & Document Control , OSDS, DPWES
Department of Highways - VDOT
Irish Granfield, Land Acqu.. & Planning Div., Park Authority
District Planning Commissioner
James Patteson, Director, Facilities Mgmt. Div., DPWES ,Voc
Gary Chevalier , Office of Capital Facilities, Fairfax County Public Schools
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At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, held in
the Board Auditorium in the Government Center at Fairfax, Virginia, on the 15th day of
March, 2004, the following ordinance was adopted:

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE
PROPOSAL NUMBER RZ 2003-PR-008
(CONCURRENT WITH PCA 75-7-004-2)

WHEREAS, Lincoln Property Company, Southwest, Inc., filed in the proper form an
application requesting the zoning of a certain parcel of land herein after described, from the 1-3
District and Highway Corridor Overlay District to the PDH-30 District and Highway Corridor
Overlay District, and

WHEREAS, at a duly called public hearing the Planning Commission considered the
application and the propriety of amending the Zoning Ordinance in accordance therewith, and
thereafter did submit to this Board its recommendation, and

WHEREAS, this Board has today held a duly called public hearing and after due
consideration of the reports, recommendation, testimony and facts pertinent to the proposed
amendment, the Board is of the opinion that the Ordinance should be amended,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED , that that certain parcel of land situated in
the Providence District, and more particularly described as follows (see attached legal
description):

Be, and hereby is, zoned to the PDH-30 District and Highway Corridor Overlay District, and
said property is subject to the use regulations of said PDH-30 District and Highway Corridor
Overlay District, District, and further restricted by the conditions proffered and accepted
pursuant to Va. Code Ann., §15.2-2303(a), which conditions are in addition to the Zoning
Ordinance regulations applicable to said parcel, and

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, that the boundaries of the Zoning Map heretofore
adopted as a part of the Zoning Ordinance be, and they hereby are, amended in accordance
with this enactment, and that said zoning map shall annotate and incorporate by reference the
additional conditions governing said parcel.

GIVEN under my hand this 15th day of March, 2004.

Nancy Ve
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors
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Being all of Parcels A & B, Science Application Court as shown on a plat entitled
"Plat Showing Parcels A, B, & C, Science Application Court, being the Subdivision of the
Property of Campus Point Realty Corporation II" dated April, 2003 and prepared by
VIKA, Inc., also being a portion of Campus Point Realty Corp. II as recorded in Deed
Book 11073 at Page 890 as recorded in the Land Records of Fairfax County, Virginia
and being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning for the same at a point on the southwesterly comer of Tysons
Executive Village as recorded in Deed Book 9777 at Page 1353 among the
aforementioned Land Records, said point also being on the northerly line of Lot 9,
Courthouse Station (Deed Book 7195 Page 438); thence leaving said Tysons Executive
Village and running with Courthouse Station the following course and distance

1. North 79°10'45" West, 417.85 feet to a point being the southeasterly corner
of Courts of Tyson (Deed Book 6020 Page 699); thence leaving Courthouse
Station and running with Courts of Tyson the following course and distance

2. North 10°50'42" East, 461.65 feet to the a point; thence continuing with
Courts of Tyson the following course and distance

3. North 79°09'07" West, 877.50 feet to a point on the easterly right-of-way of
Gallows Road - Route 650 (width varies); thence leaving the aforementioned
Courts of Tyson and running with Gallows Road the following five (5) courses
and distances

4. North 11°10'53" East, 142.86 feet to a point of curvature (non-tangent);
thence

5. 43.43 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 209.00 feet
and a chord bearing and distance of North 17°08'03" East , 43.36 feet to a
point of compound curvature; thence

VIKA Incorporated
8180 Greensboro Drive, Suite 200 n McLean, VA 22102 n (703) 442-7800 n Fax (703) 761-2787

Mclean. VA n Germantown, MD n Leesburg. VA



6. 158 . 13 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 416.60 feet
and a chord bearing and distance of North 00018'25" East , 157.18 feet to a
point; thence

7. 46.73 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 35.54 feet
and a chord bearing and distance of North 27°08'36" East, 43.43 feet to a
point; thence

8. South 21004'15* West, 19.05 feet to a point ; thence

9. South 62°49'39" East, 13.74 feet to a point ; thence

10. North 27°10'21" East, 46.73 feet to a point; thence

11. North 64°49'49" East, 240.41 feet to a point ; thence

12. 125.73 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 200.00 feet
and a chord bearing and distance of North 82°50'21" East, 123.67 feet to a
point; thence

13. South 79°09'07" East, 424.76 feet to a point; thence

14. 175.26 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 168.00 feet
and a chord bearing and distance of South 49°15'56" East, 167.42 feet to a
point; thence

15. South 19°22'46" East, 121.31 feet to a point; thence

16. North 73°33'08" East, 169.34 feet to a point on the westerly right-of-way line
of Interstate Route 495 (variable width right-of-way); thence running with
Interstate Route 495 the following three (3) courses and distances

17. South 16026'52" East, 64.26 feet to a point of curvature; thence

18. 423.65 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 11 ,609.16
feet and a chord bearing and distance of South 11 °28'32" East, 423.63 feet to
a point ; thence leaving said Interstate Route 495 and running with the
westerly line of the aforementioned Tysons Executive Village the following
course and distance

19. South 10°54 '22" West, 485.88 to the point of beginning containing 829,386
square feet or 19.04008 acres of land.

X:1Data\6000-699916235F\DescxiptionWarceI A 8 7-16-03.doc
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LINCOLN PROPERTY COMPANY SOUTHWEST INC.

PROFFERS

RZ 2003-PR-008

March 14, 2004

Pursuant to Section 15.2-2303(a), Code of Virginia, 1950 as amended, and subject to the
Board of Supervisors approving a rezoning to the PDH-30 District for property identified as Tax
Map 39-2 ((1)) part 13 (hereinafter referred to as the "Application Property"), Lincoln Property
Company Southwest, Inc., the Applicant in RZ 2003-PR-008 proffers for the owners,
themselves, and their successors and assigns the following conditions. In the event that this
Application is approved, any previous proffers for the Application Property are hereby deemed
null and void and hereafter shall have no effect on the Application Property.

Development Plan

Development of the Application Property shall be in substantial conformance with the
Conceptual Plan/Final Development Plan (CDP/FDP) prepared by VIKA Incorporated,
consisting of thirteen (13) sheets dated January 17, 2003 as revised through March 11,
2004, which CDP/FDP proposes a maximum of 570 dwelling units (including ADUs),
with a maximum of 92 single family attached dwellings and 478 multi-family dwelling
units. With the development of 570 dwelling units, there will be a minimum of 30
affordable dwelling units provided, based on compliance with Section 2-800 of the
Zoning ordinance. . If fewer number of market rate units are built, a proportionately
fewer number of ADUs will be provided. The Generalized Development Plan for
companion application PCA 75-7-004-2 is shown on Sheets 4 and 5.

Secondary uses shall be limited to unmanned bank teller machines, swimming pool and
associated facilities , fitness centers, basketball half-court/racquetball court/sports court,
business/telecommuting centers, video/entertainment centers, leasing offices,
recreational/community rooms, outdoor recreational uses, and other accessory uses
typically provided in multi-family communities.

2. Notwithstanding that the CDP/FDP is presented on thirteen (13) sheets and said
CDP/FDP is the subject of Proffer 1 above, it shall be understood that the CDP shall be
the entire plan shown on Sheets 2 and 3, relative to the points of access , the maximum
number and type of dwelling units , the amount of open space, the general location and
arrangement of buildings and parking, and the peripheral setbacks. - The Applicant or
successors have the option to request a FDPA for elements other than the CDP elements
from the Planning Commission for all of or a portion of the CDP/FDP in accordance with
the provisions set' forth in Section 16-402 of the Zoning Ordinance, if in conformance
with the approved CDP and proffers.

3. Pursuant to Paragraph 4 of Section 16-403 of the Zoning Ordinance, minor modifications
from the CDP/FDP may be permitted as determined by the Zoning Administrator. The
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Applicant or successors shall have the flexibility to modify the layouts shown on Sheets 2
and 3 of the CDP/FDP without requiring approval of an amended CDP/FDP provided
such changes are in substantial conformance with the CDP/FDP as determined by the
Department of Planning and Zoning ("DPZ") and do not increase the number of dwelling
units, decrease the amount of open space, or decrease the setback from the peripheries.

4. Advanced density credit shall be reserved as may be permitted by the provisions of
Paragraph 5 of Section 2-308 of the Fairfax County Zoning Ordinance for all eligible
dedications described herein, including road dedications, park dedications and school
dedications, or as may be required by Fairfax County or Virginia Department of
Transportation ("VDOT") at the time of site plan approval.

Owner Associations

5. Prior to the issuance of the first Residential Use Permit ("RUP") on the Application
Property, the Applicant shall establish an Umbrella Owners Association ("UOA") in
accordance with. Virginia law. Individual homeowner associations and/or condominium
owners associations ("HOA/COAs") shall be formed for various areas of the Application
Property in accordance with Virginia law. Each HOA/COA and rental component shall
be a member of the UOA with voting rights based on the number of dwelling units within
each. The respective UOA and HOA/COA documents shall specify the maintenance
obligations as may be outlined in these proffers and as may be agreed upon between the
HOA/COAs and rental components.

Transportation

6. At the time of site plan approval, or upon demand by Fairfax County, whichever shall
occur first, the Applicant shall dedicate and convey in fee simple to the Board of
Supervisors right-of-way along the Application Property's Gallows Road frontage
measuring a minimum of seventy-four (74) feet from the existing centerline as shown on
Sheet 3 of the CDP/FDP.

Townhouse units fronting on Gallows Road shall be set back a minimum of 15 feet from
the dedicated right-of way. Initial purchasers of the townhouses along Gallows Road
shall be advised in writing prior to entering into a contract of sale that Gallows Road is
planned to be widened in the future.

7. At the time of site plan approval , the Applicant shall escrow the cost of constructing a
future right-turn deceleration lane along the Gallows Road frontage of the Application
Property, in an amount to be determined by Department of Public Works and
Environmental Services ("DPWES"). The escrow shall include the cost of relocating, if
determined necessary, the underground utilities existing at the time of rezoning approval
which include a fiber optic line and water easement. This new turn lane is anticipated to
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be needed at such time as the existing right -turn deceleration lane becomes a future
through lane on Gallows Road.

8. The Applicant shall construct extensions of the existing left turn lanes on northbound
Gallows Road at the Merry Oaks Lane intersection and southbound Gallows Road at
Science Applications Court within the existing right-of-way as may be approved by
DPWES and VDOT. Such extensions, if permitted, shall be completed prior to the
issuance of the 100th Residential Use Permit (RUP) for the Application Property.

9. Science Applications Court shall remain a private street . Commensurate with
development of the Application Property, the Applicant shall construct improvements to
Science Applications Court on a new alignment as shown on the CDP/FDP. The Science
Applications Court approach to Gallows Road shall accommodate two lanes entering and
three lanes exiting the Application Property.

10. Prior to site plan approval, the Applicant shall perform a warrant analysis to determine if
a traffic signal is warranted at the intersection of Gallows Road and Madrillon Road. If
the study shows a signal is warranted now or will be warranted with the build-out of the
Application Property, the Applicant shall escrow the sum of $25,000 with DPWES at the
time of first site plan approval towards the design and installation of said traffic signal at
the intersection of Gallows Road and Madrillon Road. If the signal has not been installed
within five (5) years of the date of the rezoning approval, the escrowed amount shall be
redirected to the Providence District Trails Fund.

11. The Applicant shall provide one (1) bus shelter along its Gallows road frontage with
specific location determined by WMATA. The bus shelter shall be the typical open type
and the installation shall be limited to the concrete pad, the shelter itself and a trash can.
No bus turn outs or special lanes shall be provided by the Applicant. If, by the time of
final bond release, WMATA has not determined the exact location of the bus shelter, the
Applicant shall escrow the amount of $20,000 with DPWES for the installation of a bus
shelter by others in the future. Once installed, the bus shelter and trash can shall be
maintained by the Application Property's UOA. Initial purchasers shall. be advised in
writing prior to entering into a contract of sale that the UOA shall be responsible for the
maintenance of the bus shelter. The UOA/HOA/COA documents shall specify that the
UOA is responsible for the maintenance of the bus shelter.

At the time of final site plan approval, the Applicant shall escrow the amount of $20,000
with DPWES for the installation of a bus shelter by others along the southbound frontage
of Gallows Road in the vicinity of the Merry Oaks Lane intersection, with the specific
location determined by WMATA. If, by the time of final bond release, WMATA has not
determined the exact location of the bus shelter, the $20,000 escrow shall be redirected to
DPWES for funding of another shelter elsewhere in the Dunn Loring/Tysons Corner area.

12. At the time of site plan approval, the Applicant shall dedicate in fee simple to the Board
of Supervisors right-of-way along the Application Property's 1495 frontage measuring 25
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feet from the existing right-of-way as shown on Sheet 3 of the CDP/FDP. The Applicant
shall provide ancillary utility and grading easements to a width determined by VDOT
provided VDOT reconstructs any permanent improvements and landscaping disturbed
with use of the easement . Subject to approval of a licensing agreement with Fairfax
County, the Applicant shall maintain and have the usage of the dedicated area for open
space until such time as construction of the .I-495 improvements commence.

13. The use of mass transit, ride-sharing and other transportation strategies shall be utilized to
reduce single occupancy vehicular (SOV) traffic from the Application Property during
peak hours by a minimum of 20 percent of the trips generated according to the Institute of
Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 6t' Edition. The transportation
demand management ("TDM") plan shall consist of at least two Level 3 TDM elements
as outlined in Attachment A and as defined by Fairfax County Department of
Transportation ("FCDOT") for residential communities, in order to achieve the
equivalent Level 4 (Platinum) program status. Tenants and purchasers shall be advised of
this transportation strategy development proffer.

The Applicant shall designate an individual( s) to act as the Transportation Coordinator(s)
whose responsibility shall be to implement the TDMs in coordination with the FCDOT.
The transportation strategies management position may be a part of other duties assigned
to the individual(s). The transportation management strategies shall be implemented after
issuance of the 200th RUP for the Application Property. Strategies shall include the
following:

A. Providing amenities for bicycle storage;
B. Providing a telecommuting center - for all residents ' use with the potential for

upgrading to T-1 or similar secure lines;
C. Providing internet connections in all dwelling units to facilitate working at home;
D. Providing a concierge service/central area where residents can arrange certain

services such as dry cleaning /pharmacy/grocery deliveries;
E. Sidewalk system designed to encourage/facilitate pedestrian circulation; and
F. Participation in a shuttle service as outlined in Proffer 14.

Strategies may include the following:

A. Participation in the Fairfax County Ride Share Program;
B. Dissemination of Ridesharing information in residential lease and purchase

packages;
C. Making ridesharing display maps and forms available to in each multi-family

building;
D. Providing Metro checks with rental contracts;
E. Instituting a "Preferred Employer" program for SAIC offering reduced

application fees, reduced deposits, and other incentives to encourage SAIC
employees to live on the Application Property;



PROFFERS
RZ 2003-PR-008
Page 5

F. Implementing a comprehensive Ozone Action Days Program;
G. Developing a web page for residents of the Application Property describing and

updating information on TDM strategies and services; and
H. Any other strategies found to be effective in reducing the number of single-

occupancy vehicle trips, mutually agreed upon by the Applicant and FCDOT.

The Transportation Coordinator may work with adjacent homeowner associations to
develop and share carpool, vanpool and other ride sharing information.

The Applicant shall notify FCDOT of the date that the TDM strategies are implemented.
One year after the TDM strategies are implemented the Applicant shall conduct a survey
of residents, visitors and employees to determine the transportation characteristics of
building tenants and employees. This survey will form the basis of the on-going
transportation management program.

Annually thereafter, the Transportation Coordinator shall conduct a multi-modal
transportation split survey of the residents to demonstrate whether the goal of reducing
SOV trips by 20 percent has been met during peak hours . The Transportation
Coordinator shall prepare an annual report , in coordination with,. and for review and
approval of the FCDOT, which shall include the results of the survey and assess the
success of the TDM strategies in reaching the stated goal and recommend adjustments in
TDM strategies.

If the annual multi-modal transportation split surveys indicate that a reduction of SOV
trips by 20 percent has not occurred, $40.00 per occupied dwelling unit shall be
contributed annually to a TDM fund for the Application Property until such time as the
reduction has occurred. The TDM fund shall be used by the Transportation Coordinator
to implement existing or new strategies to reduce SOV trips during peak hours. The
terms of this proffer with regard to contributing to a TDM fund shall expire fifteen (15)
years after the last RUP is issued.

14. The Applicant shall provide a shuttle bus/van service from the Application Property to.
the Dunn Loring Metro Station and other office campuses within Tysons Corner: The
Applicant may provide this shuttle service in concert with an existing shuttle service
provided by the adjacent 1-3 property and may share in the cost of operation. The shuttle
service shall be provided to meet peak hour demand and shall , at a minimum, operate on
weekdays (except for federal holidays) for three hours during the morning peak and three
hours during the evening peak. The shuttle service shall commence prior to the
occupancy of the 200th RUP on the Application Property and shall operate for at least
three years following the issuance of the last RUP. Cost of the shuttle service shall be
borne by the UOA. Initial purchasers shall be advised in writing prior to entering into a
contract of sale that the UOA will fund the cost of operating the shuttle. The
UOA/HOA/COA documents shall expressly state that the UOA shall be responsible for
operation of the shuttle. If it is determined by the Applicant that demand for the shuttle
service does not warrant continuation, the Applicant may elect to cease operation.
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However, the Applicant shall provide ninety (90) days advance written notification to
residents of the Application Property and FCDOT of the planned cessation of shuttle
service. In addition, if FCDOT determines that the shuttle service interferes with the
public bus service and notifies Applicant of same, the Applicant shall cease operation of
the shuttle service upon ninety (90) days advance written notification to residents.

15. All private streets shall be constructed with materials and depth of pavement consistent
with public street standards in accordance with the Public Facilities Manual, as
determined by DPWES. The Applicant and subsequent UOA/HOA/COAs shall be
responsible for the maintenance of all private streets. Initial purchasers shall be advised
in writing prior to entering into a contract of sale that the UOA/HOA/COAs will be
responsible for the maintenance of the private streets . The UOA/HOA/COA documents
shall expressly state that the individual HOA/COA . or rental component shall be
responsible for the maintenance of the private streets serving that entity 's development
area.

16. The Applicant shall make a cash contributution to a fund administered by the FCDOT to
be used toward Tysons Corner Area transportation improvements. The amount of the
contribution shall be in keeping with the policy and formula adopted by the Board of
Supervisors at the time of the approval of the rezoning (anticipated to be $734.00 per
dwelling). Using the rezoning approval date as the base date , this cash contribution shall
be adjusted accordingly to the construction cost index as published in the Engineering
News Record. The contribution shall be paid in two equal (2) installments ; the first
installment to be paid at the issuance of the first RUP; the remaining installment shall be
paid twelve (12) months later, but no later than final bond release.

17. The Applicant shall install appropriate warning signage and/or markers on the east side of
Gallows Road as determined by VDOT, advising motorists of the curve in Gallows Road
immediately north of Science Applications Court. If by the time of final bond release for
the Application Property, VDOT has not determined what signers or markers would be
appropriate, the Applicant' s obligation under this proffer shall be null and void.

18. To increase pedestrian safety crossing Gallows Road at Science Applications Court, the
Applicant shall make the following improvements subject to VDOT approval:

A. Widen the existing concrete median located on the northern Gallows Road
approach to a width of six (6) feet to provide for a pedestrian refuge. This shall
be accomplished by shifting the Gallows Road curbing along the Application
Property 's frontage.

B. Re-paint the pedestrian crosswalk.

C. Install a new pedestrian signal that counts down the time available to cross the
road.

D. Work with VDOT to ensure adequate crossing time.
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E. Install "no turn on red while pedestrians are present" signage on the Gallows
Road northern approach and on Merry Oak Lane's eastbound approach to the
intersection.

19. The Applicant shall construct a secondary emergency only access point onto Gallows
Road as shown on the CDP/FDP, commensurate with development of the townhouse
section . This access shall be constructed of grasscrete , ritter rings or other similar
materials and shall be chained at the property line so that it is used only in emergency
situations.

Architectural/Lmdscaping Details

20. The architectural design of the multi-family buildings and townhomes shall be in
substantial conformance with the general character of the elevations shown on Sheet 13.
The Applicant reserves the right to refine the elevations as a result of final architectural
design, so long as the character and quality of design remains consistent with those
shown. The townhouses shall be a maximum of three stories above grade with an
additional optional loft incorporated into the roof structure (maximum building height of
45 feet). Building materials may include one or more of the following: brick, stone, pre-
cast concrete, siding, stucco (excluding dryvit or other similar synthetic stucco material)
and glass. Building facades will be predominantly masonry. The facade of the parking
structure associated with Building 2 shall be predominantly either masonry or pre-cast
concrete.

A copy of the architectural plans shall be submitted to the Providence District Planning
Commissioner for review and comment prior to final site plan approval. At the time of
each submission of the final site plan to the County, a copy of the submission shall be
provided to the Providence District Planning Commissioner for review and comment.

21. A landscape plan shall be submitted as part of the first and all subsequent submissions of
the site plan and shall be coordinated with and approved by the Urban Forester. This
plan shall be in substantial conformance with the landscape concepts plan as to quantity
and quality. of plantings, and in general conformance with the location of plantings as
shown on Sheets 6. The Applicant shall work with the Urban Forester to select plant
species that in addition to meeting other landscaping requirements such as durability,
availability and aesthetics, also aid in the maintenance of air quality . Location of
plantings may be modified based on utility location, sight distance easements, and final
engineering details as approved by the Urban Forester, but shall be consistent in the
number and type of plantings.

22. The design details shown on Sheets 6, 8, 9 and 10 submitted with the CDP/FDP illustrate
the design intent and overall community organization of the proposed development.
Landscaping and on-site amenities shall be substantially consistent in terms of character
and quantity with the illustrations and details presented on these sheets. Specific features
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such as exact locations of plantings , pedestrian lighting , sidewalks to individual units, etc.
are subject to modification with final engineering and architectural design . Landscaping
and on-site amenities shall include:

a. A landscaped entry feature to be provided on site to include an entrance
monument and/or signage , ornamental trees and shrubs;

b. Installation of streetscape elements and plantings along the Application
Property's Gallows Road frontage as shown on Sheets 6 and 10 of the
CDP/FDP. A planting strip a minimum of six (6) feet in width shall be
provided between the future curb of Gallows Road anticipated with
construction of an additional lane and the proposed asphalt trail. Street
trees on the east side of the trail shall be planted at twice the density as
street trees in the planting strip west of the trail, as shown on Sheet 10 of
the CDP/FDP. Street trees shall be a minimum of three-inch caliper at the
time of planting. Trees located within VDOT rights-of-way are subject
to VDOT approval.

c. Installation of streetscape elements and plantings along the south side of
Science Application Court as shown on Sheet 9 of the CDP/FDP.

d. A large community green in the eastern portion of the Property as shown
on Sheet 8 of the CDP/FDP. This passive recreational area shall include
pedestrian pathways, specialized landscaping, seating areas, and
pedestrian lighting and shall be available for use by all residents of the
Application Property.

e. Landscaped courtyards within the multi family Buildings 2 and 3 as
shown on Sheet 6 and detailed on Sheet 8 of the CDP/FDP. These
courtyards shall incorporate a courtyard walk, special paving areas with
seating or picnic areas, a mixture of deciduous , evergreen and ornamental
plantings, and a lawn panel . Each courtyard may vary in design detail and
amenities.

Sidewalk/Trails

23. The Applicant shall provide sidewalks on both sides of Science Applications Court and
throughout the Application Property linking buildings as shown on Sheet 6 of the
CDP/FDP. Such construction shall occur commensurate with the development of each
section of the Application Property. In addition, the Applicant shall construct a minimum
five (5) foot wide asphalt trail around the stormwater management pond and between the
1-495 frontage and the proposed parking garage as shown on the CDP/FDP. Trail
construction shall occur concurrently with the construction of the stonnwater
management ponds.
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24. The Applicant shall construct an eight (8) foot wide asphalt trail within the dedicated
right-of way along the Gallows Road frontage as shown on Sheets 6 and 10 of the
CDP/FDP.

Environment

25. All outdoor lighting fixtures shall be in accordance with the Performance Standards
contained in Part 9 (Outdoor Lighting Standards) of Article 14 of the Zoning Ordinance.
Fixtures used to illuminate residential streets, parking areas and. walkways shall not
exceed twenty (20) feet in height, shall be of low intensity design and shall utilize full
cut-off fixtures which shall focus directly on the Application Property . All upper level
parking deck lighting fixtures shall not exceed the height of the parapet wall. Lighting on
the lower level of parking decks shall be installed between the ceiling beams to reduce
glare.

To prevent parking deck lighting impacts on Tysons Executive Village , the southern
fagade of the parking deck located adjacent to 1-495 shall be solid including a solid
garage door or panel door which will not allow light to pass through.

26. Signage on the Application Property shall be provided in accordance with Article 12 of
the Zoning Ordinance . If lighted, signage shall be internally lighted or directed
downward.

27. Unless modified by DPWES, the Applicant shall provide stormwater detention and Best
Management Practices as required by the Public Facilities Manual (PFM) and as depicted
on the CDP/FDP in up to three enhanced extended detention facilities. Plantings shall be
provided within these ponds to the extent permitted by the PFM . The design of the
southern pond will require a modification of the PFM to allow the installation of a dam
cut-off wall. The ponds shall be maintained by the UOA, in association with the owners
of the commercial structures governed by PCA 75-7-004-2.

28. Within 90 days of the Board's approval of the rezoning of the Application Property, the
Applicant shall submit a written comparative analysis to the Tysons Executive Village
("TEV") Homeowners Association Board of Directors [Tax Map 39-2 ((48))], DPWES,
and the Providence District Supervisor analyzing the effects of existing and future
development on the existing wet pond in the TEV subdivision for the entire watershed of
the pond and comparing the advantages and disadvantages of converting it to a dry pond
or maintaining it as a wet pond. The TEV HOA shall be given the opportunity to review
the analysis and provide a written determination to the Applicant and Providence District
Supervisor as to its decision to maintain or convert the pond . As a result of that
determination and after review of that analysis by DPWES, the Applicant shall undertake
the following actions:

a. If TEV elects to maintain their stormwater management facility as a wet pond, the
Applicant shall remove accumulated sediment from the pond and restore the pond
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it to its originally designed storage capacity at no cost to TEV. Such
improvement shall be made concurrent with initiation of clearing and grading on
the Application Property subject to TEV providing any necessary permission
and/or easements at no cost to the Applicant. The Applicant shall perform a
bathometric survey of the TEV pond following completion of the pond
improvements and shall perform a second bathometric survey following
completion of construction on the Application Property. Should these surveys
show an unacceptable level of sedimentation has occurred , as determined by
DPWES, the Applicant shall restore the pond to its approved storage volume prior
to final bond release on the Application Property.

The Applicant shall then enter into an agreement with TEV agreeing to pay its
proportionate share of all future pond maintenance costs (as defined in said
agreement). Said agreement shall be recorded in the land records.

b. If TEV elects to convert their wet pond to a dry pond, the Applicant shall revise
the TEV site plan accordingly and shall make the necessary improvements at no
cost to TEV subject to TEV's written authority to do so and subject to DPWES
approval. Landscaping in the pond shall be provided by Applicant as permitted
by the Urban Forester and DPWES. In order to convert the pond it is understood
that it may be necessary to provide Best Management Practices (BMPs) for TEV
on the Application Property. Conversion of the pond shall occur concurrent with
clearing and grading activities on the Application Property provided 1) the TEV
site plan revision has been approved; and 2) TEV provides any necessary
permission and/or easements at no cost to the Applicant. If the TEV site plan
revision is not approved and/or necessary easements not provided prior to clearing
and grading activities on the Application Property, the Applicant shall delay
conversion of the pond until necessary approvals and easements are obtained but
shall be allowed to proceed with clearing, grading and construction on the
Application Property. Once the pond has been converted to a dry pond, TEV
shall petition Fairfax County to accept maintenance of the pond. The Applicant
shall be responsible for any additional improvements needed to ensure County
acceptance.

c. The Applicant shall bond these public improvements in keeping with standard
County policies.

If TEV does not provide a written determination to the Applicant and Providence District
Supervisor within 60 days of its receipt of the Applicant's written comparative analysis,
the Applicant shall implement improvements specified in Paragraph "a" above.

29. In an effort to mitigate existing drainage problems within the adjacent Courts of Tysons
("COT') community, the Applicant shall:
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a. Design and install a storm drain system to intercept stormwater from Gallows
Road currently being piped along the COT northern boundary line. The new
system shall redirect this storm drainage through the Application Property as
generally shown on the CDP/FDP.

b. Provide an underground TV inspection of the condition of the existing storm drain
from Gallows Road to the proposed intercepts and correct any breaks,
malfunctions, or sedimentation found, as determined necessary and approved by
DPWES. Implementation of this proffer is dependent on the COT granting any
necessary easements or letters of permission at no cost to the Applicant. .

c. The Applicant shall bond these public improvements in keeping with standard
County policies.

30. A tree preservation plan shall be submitted as part of the site plan in conformance with
the tree save areas shown on the CDP/FDP. The preservation plan shall be prepared by a
professional with experience in the preparation of tree preservation plans, such as a
certified arborist or landscape architect , and reviewed and approved by the Urban
Forestry Division. The tree preservation plan shall consist of a tree survey that includes
the location, species, size, crown spread and condition rating percentage of all trees
twelve (12) inches in diameter and greater within fifteen (15) feet of either side of the
limits of clearing and grading . The condition analysis ratings shall be prepared using
methods outlined in the latest edition of the Guide for Plant Appraisal published by the.
International Society of Arboriculture.

All trees shown to be preserved on the tree preservation plan shall be protected by tree
protection fence. Tree protection fencing using four foot high, fourteen (14) gauge
welded wire attached to six (6) foot steel posts driven eighteen (18) inches into the
ground and placed no further than ten (10) feet apart, shall be erected at the limits of
clearing and grading as shown on the CDP/FDP. All tree protection fencing shall be
installed prior to any clearing and grading activities, including the demolition of any
existing structures . Three (3) days prior to the commencement of.any clearing , grading,
or demolition activities, the Urban Forestry Division shall be notified and given the
opportunity to inspect the site to assure that all tree protection devices have been
correctly installed.

The Applicant shall strictly conform to the limits of clearing and grading as shown on
Sheet 3 of the CDP/FDP.

The limits of clearing and grading shall be marked with a continuous line of fl agging
prior to the pre-construction meeting . Before or during the pre-construction meeting, the
limits of clearing and grading shall be walked with an Urban Forestry Division
representative to determine where minor adjustments to the clearing limits can be made
to increase the survivability of trees at the edge of the limits .of clearing and grading.
Representatives of the COT and TEV HOAs shall be invited to participate in walking the
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limits of clearing and grading adjacent to their communities with the Applicant and the
Urban Forester . Trees that are not likely to survive construction due to their species
and/or their proximity to disturbance will also be identified at this time and removed as
part of the clearing operation.

Any trees identified to be preserved adjacent to the COT, Courthouse Station and TEV
property lines, which fail to survive within two years following construction activity shall.
be replaced by the Applicant with species as determined appropriate by the Urban
Forester, in consultation with designated representatives of the COT HOA, Courthouse
Station HOA, and TEV HOA and the UOA for the Application Property. To supplement
the normal conservation escrow required , the Applicant shall post an additional $ 10,000
in the conservation escrow at the time of site plan approval to ensure replacement of
construction damaged trees.

31. A fence a minimum of six feet in height shall be provided between the southernmost
stormwater management pond on the Application Property and the adjacent TEV,
Courthouse Station , and COT subdivisions as depicted on the CDP/FDP. The fence shall
be constructed with masonry piers and wooden inserts . The fence shall be field located,
with review by the Urban Forester , to ensure minimal disturbance to existing vegetation.
Deciduous and evergreen trees shall be installed between the wall/fence and adjacent
subdivisions to supplement existing vegetation to be preserved , as determined by the
Urban- Forester. Any trees identified to be preserved which fail to survive a two year
period following construction shall be replaced by the Applicant with species determined
appropriate by the Urban Forester, in consultation with designated representatives of the
COT HOA, Courthouse Station HOA, and TEV HOA and the UOA for the Application
Property.

Installing the above-referenced fence will result in a double set of fencing along the COT
eastern boundary . If, in the future, both the COT HOA and the UOA for the Application
Property jointly decide to eliminate the second fence located inside the Application
Property, nothing in this proffer should prevent removal of that fence . In the event the
removal of such second fence is jointly decided , a shared fence maintenance agreement
for the eastern boundary of COT shall be executed prior to any removal.

32. Within the tree save area shown on the Application Property immediately north of the
COT and around the south end of the Kidwell Drive cul-de-sac, the Applicant shall
provide supplemental evergreen and deciduous trees as determined by the Urban Forester
in consultation with the COT HOA and Heritage Point HOA in an effort to create an
effective year round screen . Care shall be taken to retain healthy quality vegetation to the
maximum extent possible , while augmenting the screening opportunities.

33. All units constructed on the Application Property shall meet the thermal standards of the
CABO Model Energy Program for energy efficient homes , or its equivalent, as
determined by DPWES for either electric or gas energy homes , as applicable.
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34. Polysonics Corp. has prepared a Traffic Noise Analysis of the Application Property dated
August 2003. This report provides an analysis of noise impacts associated with 1-495 and
Gallows Road. Based on the findings of that report, the Applicant shall provide the
following noise attenuation measures:

a. In order to reduce interior noise associated with Interstate 495 to a level of
approximately 45 dBA Ldn, the garage associated with Building 3 shall be
utilized as a noise attenuation barrier as shown on the CDP/FDP.

b. In order to reduce interior noise to a level of approximately 45 dBA Ldn,
for units which are projected to be impacted by highway noise from 1-495
having levels projected to be greater than 70 dBA Ldn after the garage is
in place, located on the eastern facade of Building 2 and the northern and
southern facades of Building 3, these units shall be constructed with the
following acoustical measures:

Exterior walls shall have a laboratory sound transmission class (STC)
rating of at least 45. Doors and glazing shall have a laboratory STC rating
of at least 37 unless glazing constitutes more than 20% of any facade
exposed to noise levels of Ldn 65 dBA or above . If glazing constitutes
more than 20% of an exposed facade, then the glazing shall have a STC
rating of at least 45. All surfaces shall be sealed and caulked in
accordance with methods approved by the American Society for Testing .
and Materials (ASTM) to minimize sound transmission.

c. In order to reduce interior noise to a level of approximately 45 dBA Ldn
for units which are projected to be impacted by roadway noise from
Gallows Road having levels projected to be between 65 and 70 dBA Ldn,
located on the western facade of Building 1 and the townhouse units
facing Gallows Road, these units shall be constructed with the following
acoustical measures:

Exterior walls should have a laboratory sound transmission class (STC)
rating of at least 39.Doors and glazing shall have a laboratory STC rating
of at least 28 unless glazing constitutes more than 20% of any facade
exposed to noise levels of Ldn 65 dBA or above. If glazing constitutes
more than 20% of an exposed facade, then the glazing shall have a STC
rating of at least 39. All surfaces should be sealed and caulked in
accordance with methods approved by the American Society for Testing
and Materials (ASTM) to minimize sound transmission.

d. Prior to the issuance of building permits, alternative interior noise
attenuation measures may be provided subject to the implementation of a
refined noise study as reviewed and approved by DPWES after
consultation with the Department of Planning and Zoning.
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e. Due to the placement of structures on the site, additional exterior noise
mitigation is not necessary for most of the outdoor recreational uses on the
site. The jogging trail with exercise stations located adjacent to 1-495 will
be impacted by noise but mitigation is not provided.

35. If required by DPWES , a geotechnical engineering study shall be submitted to DPWES
for review and approval prior to final site plan approval ,- and recommendations generated
by this study shall be implemented as required by DPWES.

36. Prior to the issuance of a demolition permit or land disturbance permit , a rodent
abatement plan shall be submitted to Fairfax County Health Department that will outline
the steps that will be taken to prevent the spread of rodents from the construction site to
the surrounding community and sewers . The Applicant shall implement the rodent
abatement plan.

Miscellaneous

37. The Applicant shall contribute the amount of $150 ,000 to Kilmer Intermediate School for
the purchase of wireless computers or other technology based programs at the discretion
of the principal. The Applicant shall provide documentation that this contribution has
been made . Such contribution shall occur prior to the issuance of the first RUP for the
Application Property

38. The Applicant shall contribute the amount of $465,000 to the Board of Supervisors for
the construction of capital improvements to schools in the vicinity of the Application
Property. The contribution shall be paid in two (2) installments; the first installment of
$232,500 to be paid prior to issuance of the 100th RUP and the second installment of
$232,500 shall be paid prior to the issuance of the 300th RUP.

39. The Applicant shall comply with the Affordable Dwelling Unit (ADU) Program as set
forth in Section 2-801 of the Zoning Ordinance unless modified by the ADU Advisory
Board. The Applicant reserves the right to provide ADUs for all of the Application
Property within the multi-family buildings. Two of the required ADUs (one one-
bedroom unit and one two -bedroom unit) shall be designed and constructed to be fully
handicapped accessible. Three of the required ADUs shall be designed and constructed
as handicapped adaptable units and shall be made fully handicapped accessible if demand
dictates.

40. No temporary signs (including "Popsicle" style paper or cardboard signs) which are
prohibited by Article 12 of the Zoning Ordinance, and no signs which are prohibited by
Chapter 7 of Title 33.1 of Chapter 8 of Title 46.2 of the Code of Virginia shall be placed
on- or off-site by the Applicant or at the Applicant' direction to assist in the initial sale or
rental of residential units on the Application Property. Furthermore, the Applicant shall
direct its agents and employees involved in marketing and sale and/or rental ofresidential
units on the Application Property to adhere to this proffer.



PROFFERS
RZ 2003-PR-008
Page 15

41. The Applicant shall comply with Paragraph 2 of Section 6-110 of the Zoning Ordinance
by contributing $955 per dwelling unit for developed recreational facilities. The
Applicant shall receive credit for the on-site recreational facilities which shall include,
but not be limited to a swimming pool; a community center with exercise facilities; a tot
lot; an indoor basketball half-court/racquetball court/sport court (either within one of the
residential buildings or in a separate structure as shown on the CDP/FDP); and a jogging
trail with exercise stations. Any additional money remaining which is not spent for on-
site facilities shall be contributed to the Fairfax County Park Authority.

42. Prior to the issuance of the first RUP on the Application Property, the Applicant shall
contribute the amount of $150,000 .00 to the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors for the
acquisition of park land or improvement of park facilities in the Dunn Loring /Tysons
Corner area.

43. A covenant shall be recorded which provides that townhouse garages shall only be used
for a purpose that will not interfere with the intended purpose of garages (e.g., parking of
vehicles) and that parking shall not be permitted in driveways that are less than 18 feet in
length. This covenant shall be recorded among the land records of Fairfax County in a
form approved by the County Attorney prior to the sale of any lots and shall run to the
benefit of the UOA/HOA/COA and the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors. Initial
purchasers shall be advised in writing of the use restrictions prior to entering into a
contract of sale and said restrictions shall be contained in the HOA/COA documents.

44. All front loaded townhouse driveways on the Application Property shall be a minimum of
eighteen (18) feet in length from the garage door to the sidewalk.

45. A joint maintenance agreement between the UOA and the owners of the commercial
structures governed by PCA 75-7-004-2 shall be provided for the maintenance of Science
Application Court, pedestrian trails, and the stormwater management facilities serving the
Application Property and the property subject to PCA 75-7-004-2. Purchasers shall be
advised in writing prior to entering into a contract of sale that the UOA will share in the
cost of such maintenance . The UOA documents shall expressly state that the UOA shall
be responsible for shared maintenance of these facilities.

46. Property owners of two adjacent lots in TEV identified as Tax Map 39-2 ((48)) 9 and 10
have been utilizing portions of the Application Property as extensions of their rear yards.
In order to allow this use to continue , the Applicant shall convey in fee simple the Outlot
A-1 shown on the CDP/FDP to the owner of LotlO and Outlot A-2 as shown on the
CDP/FDP to the owner of Lot 9. Conveyance shall occur prior to bonding of the site plan
for the Application Property. The Deeds of Conveyance shall include restrictive
covenants which provide , among other things, that (1) density from the out lots shall be
reserved in perpetuity for the benefit of the remainder of the Application Property; (2) no
structures shall be constructed on the out lots , rather the out lots shall be left as open
space with existing trees preserved to the maximum extent feasible; and (3) any future
rezoning, proffered condition amendment , final development plan amendment, or site
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plan approvals for the remainder of the Application Property shall not require the
inclusion of the out lots or the joinder or consent of the owners of the out lots so long as
the rezoning, proffered condition amendment, final development plan amendment or site
plan does not include the area of the out lots.

47. In order to provide a tot lot for the COT Homeowners Association [Tax Map 39-2 ((27))],
the Applicant shall convey in fee simple Outlot A-3 as shown on the CDP/FDP to the
COT. Prior to the conveyance, the Applicant shall:

a. Install a tot lot on the outlot based on a determination as to the type of equipment
COT desires. Such equipment cost shall not exceed $20,000. Care shall be taken
to minimize disturbance to existing quality vegetation. The final location of the
tot lot shall be determined by the Urban Forester,

b. Construct a pedestrian connection between the existing COT property and the tot
lot as generally shown on the CDP/FDP; and

c. Install a fence around the perimeter of Outlot A-3 and remove sections of the
existing fence between COT and Outlot A-3 to allow the pedestrian connection..

d. Bond these improvements in keeping with standard County policies.

Such improvements shall be made subject to COT providing any necessary permission
and/or easements at no cost to the Applicant, and COT providing timely input into the
type of tot lot equipment and fencing desired. In the event COT has not provided
information with regard to equipment selection and fencing in a timely manner prior to
the Applicant applying for its 100' RUP, the Applicant may elect to contribute $20,000
to the COT along with the fenced outlot conveyance and thereby be relieved of any
further obligation to install the tot lot and pedestrian connection.

Conveyance of Outlot A-3 shall occur prior to issuance of the 100'. RUP for. the
Application Property. The Deed of Conveyance shall include restrictive covenants which
provide , among other things, that (1) density from the outlot shall be reserved in
perpetuity for the benefit of the remainder of the Application Property; (2) no structures
other than the tot lot shall be constructed on the outlot, (3) existing trees shall be
preserved to the maximum extent feasible ; and (4) any future rezoning, proffered
condition amendment, final development plan amendment, or site plan approvals for the
remainder of the Application Property shall not require the inclusion of the outlot or the
joinder or consent of the owner of the outlot so long as the rezoning , proffered condition
amendment , final development plan amendment or site plan does not include the area of
the outlot.

48. Prior to the issuance of the first RUP on the Application Property, the Applicant shall
either:
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a. Contribute the sum of $25,000 to the COT Homeowners Association for the
maintenance and future replacement of the fence installed by the COT along its
common boundary with the Application Property. The Applicant shall provide
documentation to DPWES that this contribution has been made; or

b. Enter into a fence maintenance agreement with the COT Homeowners
Association. Said agreement shall specify that the COT and the. Applicant, its
successors or assigns shall share equally in the cost of future maintenance and/or
replacement of the existing wooden fence along the Courts of Tysons northern
boundary. The COT fence along its eastern boundary and the future fence around-
the tot lot described in Proffer 45 shall be the responsibility of the COT
Homeowners Association . This agreement shall be recorded among the land
records of Fairfax County . In the event an agreement to the satisfaction of both
the parties has not been reached by the time the Applicant has applied for its first
RUP, the Applicant shall contribute the sum of $25,000 to the COT Homeowners
Association for the maintenance and future replacement of the fence and shall be
released of its obligation to enter into a joint fence agreement.

The COT Homeowners Association shall be given the opportunity to inform the
Applicant in writing of which of the two alternatives they prefer. If COT fails to provide
a written determination to the Applicant within 60 days of its receipt of the Applicant's
request for a determination , the Applicant shall implement the alternative in Paragraph
"a" above.

49. Prior to approval of the final site plan on the Application Property, the Applicant shall
provide evidence that a parking agreement is in place with the owners of the adjacent 1-3
parcel identified as Tax Map 39-2 ((1)) part 13, permitting overflow parking from the
Application Property to utilize parking facilities on the 1-3 parcel. A minimum of 150
overflow parking spaces shall be available to all residents of the Application Property
during non-business hours on weekdays (after 6:00 pm) and on weekends. This parking
agreement shall be recorded in the land records of Fairfax County.

50. Construction activity shall be permitted Mondays through Fridays from 7:00 am. to
7:00 p.m., Saturdays from 8 :00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. No construction activity shall be
permitted on Sundays , Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and New Years Day. These
construction hours shall be posted on the Application Property prior to any land
disturbing activities . The Applicant shall include a construction hour notice in its
contract with its general construction contractor.

51. These proffers may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which when so
executed and delivered shall be deemed an original document and all of which taken
together shall constitute but one in the same instrument.

52. These proffers will bind and inure to the benefit of the Applicant and his/ her successors .
and assigns.
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53. The individual sections within the Application Property may be subject to Proffered
Condition Amendments and Final Development Plan amendments without joinder and/or
consent of the other property owner of the other sections/buildings.

J:\L.INCOLN170.23 SAIClproffers\Proffers 18 CLEAN - A.doc

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON NEXT PAGE]
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APPLICANT/CONTRACT PURCHASER
OF TAX MAP 39-2 ((1 )) 13 pt.

LINCOLN PROPERTY COMPANY
SOUTHWEST, INC.

By. Richard N. Rose
Its: Vice President

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE]
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TITLE OWNER OF TAX MAP 39-2 ((1)) 13

CAMPUS POINT REALTY CORPORATION II

By. ,^`rederick R. Hazard 114
Its: rPresident

[SIGNATURES END]
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4035719 ZAPS USER GENERATED REPORT
NING APPLICATION SUMMARY REP

APPLICATION NUMBER : RZ 2003-PR-008

DECISION DATE: 3/15x004 HEARING BODY: BOS

CRD: NO MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT:

APPLICANT NAME LINCOLN PROPERTY COMPANY SOUTHWEST, INC.

PROVIDENCE

STAFF COORDINATOR : CBELGI ACTION: APPROVE

DECISION SUMMARY:
APPROVED 3/15/04 , MOTION BY SUPERVISOR SMYTH.

EXISTING ZONING

DISTRICT AREA DISTRICT

1-3 19.04 ACRES PDH-30

TOTAL 19.04 ACRES TOTAL

ZONING INFORMATION

PROPOSED ZONING APPROVED ZONING

ARE DISTRICT AREA

19.04 ACRES PDH-30 19.04 ACRES

19.04 ACRES TOTAL 19.04 ACRES

TAX MAP NUMBERS

039-2-roil /0013-

APPROVED ZONING DISTRICT DATA

ZONING DISTRICT : PDH-30

APROVED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DWELLING LAND UNIT OF NO.
LAND USE MEASURE OF

UNITS AREA AM 11A
MFD 478 9 .52 ACRES 29

SFA 92 9 .52 ACRES

TOTAL 570 19.04 ACRES 29

APROVED NON-RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

UNIT OF ND UNIT OF
FLOOR AREA MEASURE MEASURE FAR

APFA

WAIVERSIMODIFICATIONS

APPROVED WAIVERSIMODIFICATIONS

MODIFY STREETSCAPE & TRAIL REQUIREMENT

MODIFY TRANSITIONAL SCREENING REQUIREMENT

WAIVE 600 FT. PRIVATE STREET LENGTH REQUIREMENT

WAIVE BARRIER REQUIREMENT

WAIVE PRIVACY YARD REQUIREMENT FOR SFA

MODIFY LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENT

PROFFER STATEMENT DATE : 03-14-2004

PROFFER INFORMATION

ITEM DUE DATE TRIGGER NO. TRIGGER EVENT CONTRIB AMT EXPIRATION DATE

ARCHITECTURE /BUILDING MATERIALS/ 01-01-0001 0 SITE PLAN $0 01-01-0001



PROFFER INFORMATION

'ROFFER STATEMENT DATE : 03-14-2004

ITEM DUE DATE TRIGGER NO . TRIGGER EVENT CONTRIB AMT EXPIRATION DATE
BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP) 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001
BUS STOP / SHELTER / MAINTENANCE 01-01-0001 0 AT BONDING $20,000 01-01-0001
CONSTRUCTION - HOURS / NOISE 01-01-0001 0 WA $0 01-01-0001
CONTRIBUTION - FCPA / RECREATION 01-01-0001 0 RUP $150,000 01-01-0001
CONTRIBUTION - SCHOOLS 01-01-0001 0 RUP $150,000 01-01-0001
CONTRIBUTION / OTHER TRANSPORTAT 01-01-0001 0 RUP $418,380 01-01-0001
DEDICATION - HOA OPEN SPACE - RECR 01-01-0001 0 RUP $0 01-01-0001
DEDICATION / OTHER LAND USE 01-01-0001 0 AT BONDING $0 01-01-0001
DENSITY CREDIT 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT OFF-SITE 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001
DRIVEWAYS 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001
EMERGENCY ACCESS 01-01-0001 0 DATE-TBD $0 01-01-0001
ENERGY EFFICIENCY 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001
FENCE 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001
GARAGES - CONVERSION RESTRICTION 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001
GEOTECHNICAL REVIEW 01-01-0001 0 SITE PLAN $0 01-01-0001
HOA ESTABLISH 01-01-0001 0 RUP $0 01-01-0001
LANDSCAPING 01-01-0001 0 SITE PLAN $0 01-01-0001

LIGHTING / GLARE 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

LIMITS OF CLEARING AND GRADING 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

MINOR MODIFICATION 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

NOISE ATTENUATION (STUDY / WALL) 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001
OTHER - TRANSPORTATION 01-01-0001 0 SITE PLAN $0 01-01-0001

PARKING 01 -01-0001 0 N/A $o 01-01-0001

PARTIAL PCA PERMITTED 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS (CROSSVI 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

POND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

PRIVATE STREETS 01-01-0001 0 W/RD CONSTRCT $0 01-01-0001

PROFFERED PLANS 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

RIGHT OF WAY - DEDICATION 01-01-0001 0 SITE PLAN $0 01-01-0001

RODENT CONTROL 01-01-0001 0 DATE-TBD $0 01-01-0001

SETBACK 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

SHUTTLE BUS 01-01-0001 200 RUP $0 01-01-0001

SIDEWALK / TRAIL 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001
SIGNAGE 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT POND - OI 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

TRAFFIC SIGN 01-01-0001 0 AT BONDING $0 01-01-0001

TRAFFIC SIGNAL WARRANT ANALYSIS / I. 01-01-0001 0 SITE PLAN $25,000 01-01-0001
TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEME 01-01-0001 200 RUP $0 01-01-0001

TREE PRESERVATION I SURVEY 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

TREE REPLACEMENT BOND 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

TREE SAVE FENCING 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

USE RESTRICTIONS 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001

AFFORDABLE DWELLING UNITS 01-01-0001 0 N/A $0 01-01-0001



PLEAS! TYPE
01 PRINT IN BLACI INK

COMMONWEALTH OF'VIRGINIA
COUNTY OF FAIRFAX•.

APPLICATION FOR ZONING MAP AMENDMENT
1`'' R$VISEDF=

APPLICATION NO. RZ 2003 PR-008
(Assigned by Staff)

PETITION

I (We), Lincoln Property Company Southwest . Inc. , the applicant(s)-,
petition you' to adopt an ordinance amending the Zoning Map of Fairfax County, Vi^ inia, by
reclassifying from the I-3 District to the PD -
District the property described/below and outlined in red on the Zoning ection -Sheet(s)
accompanying and made a part of this application.

TO: THE BO4RD OF SUPERVISORS OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
See attached

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Lot(s) !lock (s) Subdivision Deed Boot

t.

Page No.

TAX MAP DESCRIPTION:
39-2 ((1)) part 13 19.04 acres

1q Is. Double Circle-.io. Single Circle No. Parcel(s)/Lot(s) 10. Total Area(Ac . or Sq.Ft.)

3. POSTAL ADDRESS OF PROPERTY: (If any)
7981 Science Applications Court

4. ADVERTISING DESCRIPTION : ( Ex. South of Rt. 236 , 1000 feet west of Rt. 274)
Southeast intersection - of Gallows Road (Rte. 650 ) and Science Applications Court

5. PRESENT USE: _ Office and vacant

6. PROPOSED USE: Residettial (multi-family and single-family attached)

7. SUPERVISOR DISTRICT: Providence

The sate(s) and address ( s) of'ovaer ( s) of record shall be provided on the affidavit fors attacked aid Bade part of this application.

The undersigned has the poser to aitborise and does hereby aithorise Fairfax County staff representatives on official business to
eater on the subject property as'necessary to process the 'application.

-P'Martin D. Walsh, attorney/agent, Walsh, Colucci, Lubeley, Emrich & Terpak, P.C.
Type or Print of Applicant or Agent

I
Si`natsre .of Applicaar or A$en

2200 . Clarendon Boulevard-, 13th Floor , Arlington , Virginia 22201

703-528-4700 !
or

please provide one and telephone .oouber of contact person if different trot above.

DO NOT WRITE IN THIS SPACE

Date avpl i.cation received: % Application iee Paid:

-^^ ....1 4 .:at.i nn accented: Form Rd 410i8c



COUNTY OF FAIRFAX

PLANNING COMMISSION OFFICE
12000 Government Center Parkway , Suite 330

Fairfax, Virginia 22035-0042
Office : (703) 324-2865

Fax: (703) 324-3948

!004 PLANNING COMMISSION

Peter F . Murphy , Jr. Chairman

Spring field District

John R . Byers , Vice Chairman

Mount Vernon District

Suzanne F . Hanel, Secretary

Braddock District

Walter L. Alcorn, Parliamentarian

At-Large

Frank de Is Fe

Hunter Mill District

Janet R. Hall

Mason District

James R. Hart

Ai-Large

Nancy Hopkins

Dranesville District

Ronald W. Koch

Sully District

Kenneth A. Lawrence

Providence District

Rodney L. Lusk

Lee District

Laurie Frost Wilson

At-Large

Barbara J. Lippe

Executive Director

Sara Robin Hardy

Assistant Director

April 8, 2004

Elizabeth Baker , Planner
Walsh , Colucci , Lubeley, Emrich & Terpak, PC
2200 Clarendon Blvd., 13th Floor
Arlington, VA 22201

RE: FDP 2003-PR-008 - Lincoln Property
Company Southwest, Inc.

Dear Ms. Baker:

The purpose of this letter is to formally advise you, as the agent for the
applicant on the above referenced case, that on Wednesday, April 7, 2004,
the Planning Commission voted 7-0-2 (Commissioners Murphy and
Wilson abstaining; Commissioners Hall and Harsel absent from the
meeting) to approve FDP 2003-PR-004, in conjunction with the earlier
approval of RZ 2003-PR-004 on March 15, 2004 by the Board of
Supervisors.

Enclosed for your records is a copy of the verbatim of the Commission's
action on this matter. If you need additional information, please let me
know.

Sincerely,

Barbara J. Lippa
Executive Director

Enclosures (a/s)

cc: Linda Smyth, Supervisor, Providence District
Ken Lawrence, Planning Commissioner, Providence District
Cathy Belgin, Senior Planner, ZED, DPZ 3

4/7/04 Date File
0-8 (c) File



Planning Commission Meeting
April 7, 2004
Verbatim Excerpt

FDP 2003-PR-008 - LINCOLN PROPERTY COMPANY SOUTHWEST, INC.

Decision Only During Commission Matters
(Public Hearing was held on March 4, 2004)

Commissioner Lawrence: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My apologies to Commissioners. This
was an oversight at the time we acted on this case and we are now catching up. Mr . Chairman, I
MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVE FDP 2003-PR-008 WITH THE
REZONING APPLICATION HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS ON MARCH 15, 2004.

Commissioner Lusk: Second.

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Lusk. Is there a discussion of the motion ? All those in
favor of the motion to approve FDP 2003 -PR-008 , say aye.

Commissioners: Aye.

ChairmanMurphy: Opposed? Motion carries. Chair abstains; not present for the public
hearing.

Commissioner Wilson: Mr. Chairman?

Chairman Murphy: Yes.

Commissioner Wilson: I abstain. I wasn't here for the public hearing.

Chairman Murphy: Ms. Wilson abstains; was not present also. Okay.

(The motion carried by a vote of 7-0-2 with Commissioners Murphy and Wilson abstaining;
Commissioner Alcorn not present for the vote; Commissioners Hall and Harsel absent from the
meeting.)

LBR
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Decision Only During Commission Matters
(Public Hearing was held on January 22, 2004)

Commissioner Lawrence: Mr. Chairman, I have a brief statement to make before introducing
motions, with your permission.

Commissioner Alcorn: Mr. Chairman? Before Mr. Lawrence starts, is this on the Lincoln
Property case?

Commissioner Lawrence: It is.

Commissioner Alcorn: I'd like to disclose that I am a former employee of Science Applications
International Corporation , as is my wife, and we still both own stock in that company , so I will
be recusing myself from this case . And I did miss the public hearing.

Vice Chairman Byers: Okay . Go ahead, Mr. Lawrence . The floor is yours.

Commissioner Lawrence : Thank you, Mr . Chairman . First, I want to acknowledge the work of
all parties involved in this application. In particular, Cathy Belgin of County staff has provided
unflagging support through an intense process. The applicants , and especially Elizabeth Baker,
have engaged in a continuous and thorough dialog with the affected community. In turn, the
various homeowners associations have given clear and complete views on their position and
needs at each step , with results which I will discuss tonight. So I begin with many thanks to one
and all. This application, in common with others now in process before this Commission, seeks
approval for residential buildings including townhomes and apartments . However, two features
set this application apart from others we examine : first, the residential use is proposed in place
of previously approved office use for this site , and second, the site falls within the Tysons Comer
Urban Center . While neither of these features is unique , their combination at this particular site
generates certain opportunities that would not otherwise be available. The Comprehensive Plan
for the Tysons Corner Urban Center was adopted in 1994 . I have reviewed some of the files
from the 1994 Planning Commission public hearing conducted on the plan . As might be
expected, many of the names to be found in the file are different from those now on the brass
plates in front of our seats. However, some are familiar ones . Mrs. Harsel, Mr. Murphy, and Mr.
Byers were here then . Another person who was involved at the time provided testimony giving
the consensus views of the Countywide Federation of Citizen Associations , one Mr . Gerald
Connolly. In the decade since the plan was adopted , no changes for the land area involved in the
application have taken place . The vision provides for mid-rise office use, with options for
residential development at 8 to 12 or at 20 to 30 dwellings units per acre . At the time the Plan
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was adopted, some office buildings were already on the site, and approval was given for more.
The site is located at the southeastern edge of the Tysons Corner Urban Center . Just below it to
the south is the Courts of Tysons complex, which also was already built at the time . That site,
Land Area F-7, is the extreme southern parcel to be found within the Urban Center boundary
along Gallows Road. To the north of the applicant site, just past the point where northbound
Gallows traffic makes its left curve toward Old Courthouse Road, is Heritage Point. This
complex is also within the Tysons Corner Urban Center, occupying a fairly small triangular
parcel of land that was also called out in the Comprehensive Plan for residential use at 8 to 12 or
20 to 30 dwelling units per acre, and is built out in the 8 to 12 range. In general, the vision of the
plan is for the Urban Center to have clearly defined edges, but for the non-core land areas at the
edges to provide some transition from the more suburban communities surrounding the Center to
the very intense "downtown" core. This vision is realized , for example, in the multi-family units
along Magarity Road at the Urban Center's eastern boundary. The apartments provide a
transition from the Center's inner parts to the single family neighborhoods outside the boundary.
As another example, the increased density at Courts of Tysons, zoned for 20 dwelling units to the
acre, provides a transition from the lower 8 to 12 density of Courthouse Station, further south on
Gallows and just outside the Urban Center border. The Plan gives very clear guidance that stable
residential communities adjacent to the Tysons Corner Urban Center edges should be protected
from intrusive effects produced by the more urban intensities of the Center itself . The need for
transitions in density to and from the Urban Center stems from this attribute of the Plan ; so also
does a transition in building height limits from the core to the edges of the Urban Center. Two
main aspects of this application, which must be weighed in any decision about its merits, are its
proposed density and its fulfillment of the need for transition. The two are related and are
expressed in the proposed site design. Density above that of Courts of Tysons, and well above
that of Heritage Point or of Merry Oaks across Gallows Road to the west, is proposed. The
applicant chose the 20 to 30 range from the options provided in the Comprehensive Plan.
Although this density can be viewed as a transition upward from the 20 per acre zoning of Courts
of Tysons, it is markedly above that of its western and northern neighbors. Density is one of the
main issues brought out at the public hearing for this application by the coalition of adjacent and
nearby homeowner associations, and it remains an issue with them. Yet from the County
viewpoint, higher density is exactly what is expected inside the boundaries of the Tysons Corner
Urban Center. Further, this particular application proposes residential use. Higher residential
density will put more people closer to the jobs and shopping to be found at Tysons. The
Comprehensive Plan envisions at least 12,700 residential units to be built within the Center's
bounds; at present only about 9,200 of those planned units are in place or approved. Other
considerations aside, the choice of the 20 to 30 range will provide more movement toward the
residential goals than the choice of the 8 to 12 range for this site . For the County as a whole, this
is a positive choice. But other considerations cannot be arbitrarily set aside . There remains the
transition aspect. There is also the inevitable impact of higher density on public facilities and
infrastructure. These are major items in the overall assessment of the proposal. They also were
brought out in the public hearing. Since the hearing, the applicant and the community have been
in close contact and at work on the issues. Some significant changes in the proposal have
occurred. Commissioners received new proffers at the February 19 meeting, reflecting many of
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the changes . This evening we have the benefit of staff analysis on those changes , as well as the
most recent proffers from the applicant , and I will detail some of the changes that have been
made in this application . As first proposed , the site was to have some 736 dwelling units. In the
course of review, this was reduced to 640 units at the time of the public hearing. Since then, the
density has been further reduced to the present figure of 574 units. The applicant has come, in
the most recent change , from 33.6 dwelling units per acre to 30.15 per acre , now just barely
above the 20 to 30 range given in the Plan, and within it if the number of affordable dwelling
units , 31 in this case, is not added in . The community felt that in addition to the pure density
issue , the proposal was inconsistent with the character and nature of neighboring communities.
In particular, there was a 7 story building at the northeast corner of the site that posed a problem.
The applicant has removed that building from the plan . Townhouses now face townhouses along
the whole of the Gallows Road portion of the site . They provide a transition to the apartments at
the, back of the site along the Beltway. There is a part of the site where -- as soon as I can turn
the page -- apartments face single family detached units at the southeast corner. But at this
corner it is over 200 feet from the apartments to the nearest home, with a tree and vegetation
buffer for screening . There is also a buffer between the townhomes on the site and those of
Courts of Tysons to the south . Because of the density reduction , that buffer is now a minimum
of 30 feet deep . Finally, Gallows Road itself separates the townhomes on the western border of
the site from those of the Merry Oaks development. The community expressed strong concerns
about traffic . Traffic congestion in our County is everywhere and Gallows Road is no exception.
It is true that the proposed residential use will generate fewer trips per day than the approved
office use. Nevertheless , traffic from the site will have its impact . If higher density residential is
to succeed at this site , it must have a strong Traffic Demand Management program. The
applicant has proffered to provide a program which will achieve the County's platinum rating.
The program includes elements such as facilities for telecommuting and provision of a concierge
service on-site to reduce the need for trips to the dry cleaners , the pharmacy, and so forth.
Within this program , there will be repeated measures to determine whether the overall Tysons
Corner Urban Center mode split of 20 percent trip reduction is being achieved and, if not, what
can be done to achieve it . Among the elements that may be brought into play is one that is
unique to this site . Since the office buildings at the north end of the land area will remain, the
possibility of instituting a "preferred employer " program with cost incentives for people who
work at the office to live on the site is available and is included in the TDM program. Other
elements are, for example , coordinating information on ridesharing , carpooling, and vanpools
within the site and with the surrounding neighbors . As a very direct TDM measure , the applicant
proffers for a shuttle to the Dunn Loring Metro Center with service to meet peak hour demands.

Another significant concern in the community was the question of impact on the schools. While
the applicant's reduction in density will correspondingly reduce the number of students generated
by the site, that reduction alone will not materially affect or resolve the school overcrowding
problem. That problem is not within our power to address in this process.

The community is concerned about parking . The applicant has proffered for an arrangement for
residents of the proposed development to use at least 150 existing on-site office parking spaces
outside business hours, to allow for overflow parking, as detailed in their Proffer Number 47.
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In the area of water drainage, the applicant is addressing a problem in the Courts of Tysons
complex, and also undertaking to improve the situation at Tysons Executive Village. Proffers
Numbers 27 and 28 detail this intention. The overall stormwater management design will also be
evaluated at the time of zoning.

The community has asked for a 4-foot tree buffer between Gallows Road and the development,
and for a 20-foot setback of greenspace before the first line of buildings on the site. Along
Gallows Road, the developer is generally following the Tysons Corner Urban Center non-core
guidelines in the design of the streetscape. A modification is requested to allow an 8-foot asphalt
trail rather than the more usual concrete sidewalk. The applicant's drawings show a 10-foot
green strip from the curb to the asphalt trail sidewalk, and trees -- planted every 50 feet with
shade trees which will grow tall enough to walk under and from trail to townhomes another 20
feet of green, again planted with shade trees in twice the number shown in the guidelines, so as
to preserve the shaded walkway after the widening of Gallows Road.

The community has asked for additional active recreation facilities on the site including, for
example, tennis courts, soccer fields, and open parkland. The applicant's proposal falls
somewhat short in this area. The applicant has provided for open space in the form of courtyards
and a common green, and for exercise in a swimming pool and through walking , jogging, and
anaerobics at outdoor exercise stations and an indoor fitness room. The applicant has proffered
to provide a fund for the recreation facilities using the sum of $955 per dwelling unit, with any
remainder after they are developed going to the County Park Authority. Although there are no
large outdoor playing courts or fields provided, the applicant has in the most recent changes
proffered for an indoor space to play half-court basketball and other sports.

The community has asked for services such as a dry cleaners and a convenience store. The
purpose here is to help keep residents from their vehicles by making such services available on-
site. The applicant proffers for a concierge service for residents, with pickup facilities for
groceries, pharmacy, dry cleaning, and the like, as an element of the overall TDM program.

There are other community concerns that may not be within the scope of this discussion but are
nevertheless worth mentioning here. For example, the community points out that sidewalks need
to extend not only within and across the present site, but also must be continuous from this
neighborhood to the core area of Tysons itself, if pedestrians are to be encouraged, and they must
be safe to use. This should certainly be done for all the pedestrian entrances to the Tysons
Corner Urban Center core area.

Also related to pedestrians, it is a matter of my own interest here that VDOT is in control of the
light timing on Gallows Road, including the crossing time for pedestrians. If we are to get
people to use the bus, they must be able to get safely to the southbound bus stop on Gallows.
This means crossing four traffic lanes, planned to be widened to six. It takes many seconds for a
person walking briskly to do that. I know that because I did it several times. Imagine the time
needed for a young mother pushing a stroller and leading another small child, or for a more
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elderly person , to make that crossing in the rain or with a slushy winter road . The applicant has
proffered for a center refuge at the crossing , if VDOT approves it, and will work with VDOT on
the timing for pedestrians . The applicant also proffers for a "countdown" type pedestrian
crossing signal , which should help.

Mr. Chairman , not all of the community concerns are met in this proposal . The coalition of
homeowner associations remains opposed to the application . The applicant has come a long way
indeed in meeting the concerns. Nevertheless , there are shortcomings here. But on balance, this
application gives us what the comprehensive master plan for the Tysons Corner Urban Center
seeks to achieve , an urban design , with transition to its more suburban neighbors , that will
concentrate residential units close to the Tysons core.

M. Chairman, I'm nearly ready to present motions on this application, but I need to ask the
applicant's representative a question or two. There are some proffer changes that are taking place
today.

Vice Chairman Byers : Well, I would just say you started out saying you had a brief statement to
make . We look forward to your lengthy statements.

Commissioner Lawrence : Thank you, sir . I'll keep that in mind.

Vice Chairman Byers : Ms. Baker , will you come forward please and identify yourself?

Elizabeth Baker : My name is Elizabeth and I am a planner with Walsh , Colucci.

Commissioner Lawrence : Ms. Baker , I wonder if I could ask you a couple of questions about the
proffers? We have in the Traffic Demand Management plan some changes from the group of
strategies to be included under those that "may include the following" to move some to the "shall
include the following ." And those are a "sidewalk system designed to encourage and facilitate
pedestrian circulation" and "participation in a shuttle service as outlined in Proffer 13," and then
finally a change in wording in "instituting a Preferred Employer " program which simply says "to
encourage SAIC employees to live on the application property ." Do you agree to those?

Ms. Baker: Yes, that's no problem. I'll make those changes.

Commissioner Lawrence : And there is one other change which has happened just today. It
refers to the affordable dwelling units. Will you please elucidate on that change?

Ms. Baker : Sure . You asked us to look into providing some fully handicapped prepared ADU
units within the 31 that we are going to be providing on the site. So we have considered that and
that's not a problem. We're happy to change Proffer 38 to make sure it is stated that two of them
will be fully handicapped . And that would be one one-bedroom and one of the two-bedroom
units. So I will make that change as well.
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Commissioner Lawrence: That's what I had on proffer changes at the last minute. Now I'm
ready to move. Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF PCA 75-7-004-2,
SUBJECT TO THE EXECUTION OF PROFFERS CONSISTENT WITH THOSE
CONTAINED IN ATTACHMENT 1A OF THE STAFF REPORT ADDENDUM AS
AMENDED TONIGHT.

Commissioner Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers: Seconded by Mr. Lusk. Any discussion?

Commissioner Harsel: Mr. Chairman?

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Harsel.

Commissioner Harsel: Concerning the TDM, Mr. Lawrence, what are you going to do with your
$40 per occupied dwelling unit? It says that if you do not meet your split survey, or if you are
not reduced by 20 percent, "$40 per occupied dwelling unit shall be contributed annually to a
TDM fund for the application property until such time...." -- so you are building this fund,
what's going to happen with this $40 per unit?

Commissioner Lawrence: Yes, ma'am. The $40 will go to, at least in part, to defray the cost of
additional marketing for the TDM program. For example, additional marketing might include,
besides having a website for the program, some more personal contact with residents to advise
them of the program's existence and what is happening with it. In other words, that provides
some dollars, not that many, but 40 per occupied unit to increase the leverage of the program. If
a new element comes into play as one of the ways to make the 20 percent, then that new element
needs to be marketed. For example, if we get into the Preferred Employer Program, then that
program needs to be marketed to SAIC employees and the $40 would help to defray those kinds
of costs.

Commissioner Harsel : So it ' s not going to do anything toward buying a shuttle bus to take
people up to Tysons Corner, or if people start to work with SAIC and they get reassigned to the
SAIC office down in Arlington , they are not going to provide subway tokens or --

Commissioner Lawrence: It could.

Commissioner Harsel: Well it doesn't say that. It just says that you are going to -- it doesn't say
what's going to happen with it. That was my confusion.
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Commissioner Lawrence : Mr. Chairman, I have a series of motions on modifications and
waivers . I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING WAIVERS AND
MODIFICATIONS. THE FIRST ONE, A MODIFICATION OF THE TRANSITIONAL
SCREENING REQUIREMENT ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERN AND SOUTHERN
BOUNDARIES IN FAVOR OF THAT SHOWN ON THE CDP/FDP.

Commissioner Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers: Seconded by Mr. Lusk. Any discussion? All, in favor of the motion to
recommend the Board approve a modification of the screening requirements, say aye.

Commissioners: Aye.

Vice Chairman Byers: Opposed?

Commissioner Harsel: Abstain.

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Harsel abstains. Mr. Lawrence. And the motion passes.

Commissioner Lawrence: I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF a waiver of the barrier requirement
along -- whoops, I just did that one -- A MODIFICATION OF THE NON-CORE
STREETSCAPE DESIGN ALONG GALLOWS ROAD FOR THE TYSONS URBAN
CENTER IN FAVOR OF THAT SHOWN ON THE CDP/FDP.

Commissioners Koch and Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers: Seconded by Mr. Koch and Mr. Lusk. Any discussion? All in favor of
that motion to recommend the Board approve a waiver of the barrier requirements and
modification of non-core streetscape design, say aye.

Commissioners: Aye.

Vice Chairman Byers: Opposed?

Commissioner Harsel: Abstain.

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Harsel abstains. Mr. Lawrence.

Commissioner Lawrence : Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS A WAIVER OF THE 200 SQUARE
FOOT PRIVACY YARD REQUIREMENT FOR SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED
DWELLINGS.
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Commissioner Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers: Seconded by Mr. Lusk. Any discussion? All in favor of the motion to
recommend the Board approve a waiver of the 200 square foot privacy yard requirement, say
aye.

Commissioners: Aye.

Vice Chairman Byers: Opposed?

Commissioner Harsel: Abstain.

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Harsel abstains. Mr. Lawrence.

Commissioner Lawrence : Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION
OF THE LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENT FOR MULTI-FAMILY DWELLINGS IN
FAVOR OF ONE LOADING SPACE PROVIDED FOR EACH OF THE TWO BUILDINGS,
TWO TOTAL SPACES.

Commissioner Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers: Seconded by Mr. Lusk. Any discussion? All in favor of that motion to
recommend the Board approve a modification of the loading space requirement, say aye.

Commissioners: Aye.

Vice Chairman Byers : Opposed?

Commissioner Harsel : I abstain.

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Harsel abstains.

Commissioner Lawrence : Finally, Mr. Chairman, I move that the Planning Commission approve
FDP 2003-PR-0 -- I'm sorry -- I MOVE THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A WAIVER OF THE 600 FOOT
MAXIMUM LENGTH OF PRIVATE STREETS.

Commissioner Lusk: Second.

Vice Chairman Byers: Seconded by Mr. Lusk. Did you put two motions together there?

Commissioner Lawrence: I don't think so. I didn't read it properly. May I read it again?
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Vice Chairman Byers: You wanted to make a motion -- you wanted the Board to approve a
modification of a 600 foot private road --

Commissioner Lawrence: A waiver of the 600 foot maximum length.

Vice Chairman Byers: All right. Any discussion? All in favor of that motion, say aye.

Commissioners: Aye.

Vice Chairman Byers: Opposed?

Commissioner Harsel: Abstain.

Vice Chairman Byers: Ms. Harsel abstains. Motion passes. You have one more, I believe.

Leslie Johnson: Mr. Chairman?

Vice Chairman Byers: Have the FDP?

Commissioner Lawrence: I did that as the third motion.

Ms. Johnson: I didn't hear it.

Vice Chairman Byers: I didn't either. I'm checking them off here.

Commissioner Harsel: I did and I abstained.

Vice Chairman Byers: All right.

Commissioner Lawrence: Abstention sharpens the senses.

Vice Chairman Byers: All right. Thank you very much.

II

(Each motion carried by a vote of 7-0-1 with Commissioner Harsel abstaining; Commissioner
Alcorn not present for the vote; Commissioners Hall, Murphy, and Wilson absent from the
meeting.)

LBR
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